

**AMENDED BYLAWS OF
WASHINGTON RURAL HEALTH COLLABORATIVE**

ARTICLE I

Purposes

1.1 Charitable Purposes. The purpose of this nonprofit Corporation shall be to operate exclusively for charitable, scientific, literary or education purposes, within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (as amended, or any successor provision or "Code").

1.2 Primary Purposes. The primary purposes of the Corporation shall be to:

1.2.1 Shall include, but is not limited to, assisting public hospital districts and nonprofit corporations that operate hospitals in the State of Washington that have been designated as Critical Access Hospitals under Section 1820 of the Social Security Act, as amended from time to time, to work collaboratively to improve the effectiveness, quality, performance, safety, timeliness, and accessibility of their health care services.

1.2.2 Undertake all businesses and all activities permitted to nonprofit corporations under the Washington Nonprofit Corporation Act (RCW Chapter 24.03) and do not conflict with the Code.

ARTICLE II

Registered Office and Registered Agent

2.1 Registered Office and Registered Agent. The registered office of the Corporation shall be located in the State of Washington at such place as may be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors upon filing of such notices as may be required by law, and the registered agent shall have a business office identical with such registered office. A registered agent so appointed shall consent to appointment in writing, and such consent shall be filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Washington.

2.2 Change of Address. If a registered agent changes the street address of the agent's business office, the registered agent may change the street address of the registered office of the Corporation by notifying the Corporation in writing of the change and signing, either manually or in facsimile, and delivering to the Secretary of State for filing a statement of such change, as required by law.

2.3 Change of Agent. The Corporation may change its registered agent at any time upon the filing of an appropriate notice with the Secretary of State, with the written consent of the new registered agent either included in or attached to such notice.

2.4 Other Offices. In addition to the registered office of the Corporation, the Corporation may have such other offices as the Board of Directors may from time to time designate.

ARTICLE III

Members

3.1 Members. There shall be one class of members.

3.2 Qualifications. Membership shall be available to any hospital that: has been designated as a Critical Access Hospital and that have been approved for membership in the Corporation by the Corporation's Board of Directors.

3.3 Application for Membership. Any hospital that qualifies for membership shall apply in writing to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Corporation ("Secretary-Treasurer"). The applicant shall become a member upon: (i) approval of the majority of the members; (ii) payment of any membership fee that is imposed during the calendar year in which the application was made; and (iii) execution of any documents that the Board of Directors deems necessary. The initial members of the Corporation are listed in Attachment A.

3.4 Termination of Membership. A member may resign by notifying the Secretary-Treasurer in writing at least 60 days before the resignation is to become effective. Resignation shall not relieve a member of any dues or other financial obligations owed the Corporation as of the date of resignation.

3.5 Dues. When the Board of Directors deems it necessary to fulfill the purposes of the Corporation, members shall be required to pay dues from time to time. The Board of Directors shall propose the amount of dues and the dues, as well as any changes to the process to fix the amount of dues as described in the dues policy, must be approved by a majority of the members in attendance at a meeting of the members in which a quorum is present in person or by emailed ballot. Members who do not pay dues within six month of the receipt of the billing date shall become inactive members and shall not be entitled to any of the privileges of membership, including member services, until such time as they pay all outstanding dues. The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, allow continued active membership if good cause is shown for nonpayment or may choose to waive a portion of the outstanding dues.

3.6 Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the members shall be held at such date and time as the members, by mutual agreement, may determine. The annual meeting shall be held for the transaction of such business as may come before the Members.

3.7 Special Meetings. Unless otherwise prescribed by law, special meetings of the members for any purpose or purposes may be called by: (i) the Chair; (ii) by the Board of Directors; or (iii) a majority of the members.

3.8 Place of Meetings. Meetings of the members shall be held at either the registered office of the Corporation or at such other place within or without of the state of Washington as the Board of Directors may designate.

3.9 Notice of Meetings. The Secretary-Treasurer or the person(s) calling the meeting shall give to each member of record entitled to notice of or to vote at such meeting written or printed notice stating the date, time and place of a meeting of members. If the meeting is for a special meeting of members, this notice shall also state the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called. Notice of annual and special meetings shall be given not less than five (5) days and not more than fifty (50) days before the meeting. The giving of notice shall be in accordance with Article VI of these Bylaws.

3.10 Waiver of Notice. A member may waive any notice required to be given under the provisions of these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation or by applicable law, whether before or after the date and time stated therein. Such waiver shall be in writing.

3.11 Voting Privileges. Each member shall be entitled to one vote and voting shall not be cumulative. Each member shall designate a delegate to act on behalf of the member for voting privileges. The voting privileges of a member that is delinquent in dues owed to the Corporation shall be suspended until those dues are paid.

3.12 Manner of Acting and Proxies. A member may vote either in person or by proxy. A member may vote by proxy by means of a proxy appointment form that the member or the member's duly authorized attorney-in-fact has executed in writing. All proxy appointment forms shall be filed with the Secretary-Treasurer before or at the commencement of meetings. A proxy appointment shall be valid for eleven (11) months from the date of its execution unless otherwise expressly provided in the appointment form. A proxy appointment may be revoked; however, no proxy appointment shall be effectively revoked until the member appointing the proxy has given written notice of the revocation to the Secretary-Treasurer.

3.13 Quorum. A quorum of the Board of Directors will be defined as no less than fifty percent of the membership present either in person, by phone or proxy and a simple majority of those providing action on an issues shall be necessary at all meetings to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. If a quorum is present when a vote is taken, the affirmative vote of a majority of directors present is the act of the Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided by express provision of law, the Articles of Incorporation,

or these Bylaws. Once a Board of Director is present or represented at a meeting, other than to object to holding the meeting or transacting business, the Director is deemed to be present for purposes of a quorum for the remainder of the meeting. If a quorum exists, action on a matter is approved if the votes cast favoring the action exceed the votes cast opposing the action, unless an express provision of law, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws require a different vote upon the issue.

3.14 Action of Members without a Meeting. Any action which may be or is required to be taken at a meeting of the members may be taken without a meeting if one or more written consents setting forth the action so taken shall be signed, either before or after the action taken, by all the members entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter. Action taken by written consent of the members is effective when all consents are in possession of the Corporation, unless the consent specifies a latter effective date. Whenever any notice is required to be given to any member pursuant to applicable law, a waiver in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to notice shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of notice.

3.15 Closed Meetings. From time to time it may be appropriate for voting representatives of the Corporation to discuss issues without the presence of others. It shall be the prerogative of the Chair, with the concurrence of the other officers, to call a special closed meeting or to close a portion of the annual meeting for this purpose.

3.16 Participation by Means of Communications Equipment. Members may participate in any annual or special meeting of the members or may conduct the meeting through the use of any means of communication by which all members participating can hear each other during the meeting.

3.17 Conflict of Interest. Whenever a director or officer has a financial or personal interest in any matter coming before the board of directors, the affected person shall a) fully disclose the nature of the interest and b) withdraw from discussion, lobbying, and voting on the matter. Any transaction or vote involving a potential conflict of interest shall be approved only when a majority of disinterested directors determine that it is in the best interest of the corporation to do so. The minutes of meetings at which such votes are taken shall record such disclosure, abstention and rationale for approval.

ARTICLE IV

Board of Directors

4.1 Powers. The management of all the affairs, property and interests of the Corporation shall be vested in a Board of Directors. In addition to the powers and authorities expressly conferred upon it by these Bylaws and by the Articles of Incorporation, the Board of Directors may exercise all such powers of the Corporation and do all such lawful acts as are not prohibited by law, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.

4.2 Limitations on Powers and Authorities. The Board of Directors shall have no right, power or authority to perform or authorize any of the following actions without prior approval of the members: (i) approving annual operating and capital budgets for the Corporation and approving material deviations from those budgets; (ii) liquidating, consolidating, merging or transferring substantially all of the assets of the Corporation to or into another entity; (iii) guaranteeing an obligation of any individual, partnership, other corporation, trust or other legal entity; (iv) acquiring another entity, facility or capital asset, the consideration for which exceeds \$10,000 or the value of the assets of the Corporation, whichever is less; (v) entering into significant contracts (for example, those which grant any exclusive rights or arrangements or involve commitments of the Corporation where consideration exceeds \$10,000 or the value of the assets of the Company, whichever is less); (vi) entering into a transaction with a member; (vii) entering into managed care contracts by the Corporation; (viii) hiring key executives and/or managers for the Corporation; (ix) amending or repealing these Bylaws; and (x) amending the Articles of Incorporation. Such approval shall be by a majority vote of the members unless otherwise prescribed by law.

4.3 General Standards for Directors. A director shall discharge the duties of a director, including duties as a member of a committee: (i) in good faith; (ii) in a manner the director reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the Corporation; and (iii) with the care, including making reasonable inquiry, that an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise under similar circumstances.

4.4 Number. The Board of Directors shall consist of the Chief Executive Officer or equivalent organizational leader from each of the sustaining member hospitals.

4.5 Change of Number. The number of directors may at any time be increased or decreased by amendment to these Bylaws by resolution of the members at any annual or special meeting. However, any change in the number of directors shall result in all members being represented equally on the Board of Directors.

4.6 Election and Qualifications of Directors. Each Sustaining Member shall designate in a writing filed with the Secretary or designee the Sustaining Member's chief executive officer or equivalent organizational leader to serve as its Representative in the affairs of the Corporation. Sustaining Members may appoint an alternate who may serve in the absence of the designated Representative. However, appointing an alternate should be the exception rather than the norm to preserve the Corporation's core value as a forum for chief executive officers or equivalent organizational leaders. If a Sustaining Member appoints an alternate, the alternate must have the authority to make decisions on behalf of the Sustaining Member and enjoys full voting rights on behalf of the Sustaining Member pursuant to Sections 3.11. Sustaining Members may not change frequently the person designated as its Representative or alternate in order to preserve continuity and consistency in the oversight of the affairs of the Corporation. Any change of the person designated to serve as the Sustaining Member's Representative or alternate must be filed in writing with the Secretary.

- 4.7 Resignation.** A director may resign at any time by: (i) delivering written notice to the Chair or the Secretary-Treasurer; or (ii) giving oral notice at any meeting of the members or directors. If the director serves as an officer of the Corporation, the director's resignation from the Board of Directors shall automatically result in resignation from that office. A resignation is effective when the notice is delivered or given unless the notice specifies a later effective date. Unless specified in the notice, acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.
- 4.8 Removal of Directors.** Only the member that elected the director may remove that director.
- 4.9 Vacancies.** In the event a director resigns, is removed or otherwise vacates that position, the member that elected the director shall elect another qualified person to complete the term of the vacating director.
- 4.10 Regular Meetings.** A regular meeting of the Board of Directors for the purpose of electing officers of the Corporation and transacting such other business as may properly come before the meeting shall be held, without notice other than this article of the Bylaws, immediately after and at the same place as the annual meeting of members. The Board of Directors may, by resolution, provide for additional regular meetings to be held, either within or without the State of Washington, without notice other than pursuant to that resolution.
- 4.11 Special Meetings.** Any four directors may call a special meeting of the Board of Directors at any time and at any place that they may designate. Notice of all special meetings shall: (i) state the date, time and place, and purpose; and (ii) be given in accordance with the provisions set forth in Article VI of these Bylaws at least five (5) days prior to the date of the meeting.
- 4.12 Waiver of Notice.** A director may waive any notice required by law, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws before or after the time stated for the meeting, and such waiver shall be equivalent to the giving of notice. The waiver must be in writing, signed by the director entitled to notice, and delivered to the Corporation for inclusion in the minutes or filing with the corporate records. A director's attendance at or participation in a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of the meeting unless the director, either at the beginning of the meeting or promptly upon the director's arrival, objects to holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting and does not thereafter vote for or assent to action taken at the meeting.
- 4.13 Registering Dissent.** A director who is present at a meeting of the Board of Directors at which action on a corporate matter is taken is deemed to have assented to such action unless: (i) the director's dissent or abstention from the action is entered in the minutes of the meeting; or (ii) the director delivers written notice of the director's dissent or abstention to the person acting as the secretary at the meeting before adjournment or to the Secretary-Treasurer immediately after adjournment of the meeting. A director who

voted in favor of the action does not have the right to dissent or abstain.

4.14 Action by Directors Without a Meeting.

4.14.1 Any action required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting if all directors consent to the action. The action must be evidenced by one or more written consents setting forth the action taken, signed by each of the directors either before or after the action taken, and delivered to the Corporation for inclusion in the minutes or filing with the Corporation's records. Subject to appropriate safeguards, consents transmitted by facsimile or by e-mail shall be considered valid written consents.

4.14.2 Action taken under this Section is effective when the last director signs the consent, unless the consent specifies a later effective date.

4.15 Participation by Means of Communications Equipment. Directors may participate in a regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors by or may conduct the meeting through the use of any means of communication by which all directors participating can hear each other during the meeting.

4.16 Committees.

4.16.1 The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of all the directors in office, may designate and appoint one or more committees. Each committee must consist of at least one director or have a staff person appointed to be the board liaison, together with any other persons approved by the Board of Directors. All committee members shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.

4.16.2 Any resolution designating a committee must state what authority, if any, the committee has to act on behalf of the Board of Directors. However, such authority may not include: (i) amending, altering or repealing these Bylaws; (ii) electing, appointing or removing any committee member or director or officer of the Corporation; (iii) amending the Articles of Incorporation; (iv) adopting a plan of merger or consolidation with another corporation; (v) authorizing the sale, lease, or exchange of all or substantially all of the property and assets of the corporation not in the ordinary course of business; (vi) authorizing the voluntary dissolution of the Corporation or revoking proceedings therefore; (vii) adopting a plan for the distribution of the assets of the Corporation; or (viii) amending, altering or repealing any resolution of the Board of Directors which by its terms provides that it shall not be amended, altered or repealed by such committee.

4.16.2 A committee shall be governed by the same rules as applied to the Board of Directors in Articles 4.10 through 4.15 of these Bylaws.

4.16.3 The creation of, delegation of authority to, or action by a committee does not relieve the Board of Directors, or any individual director, of any responsibility imposed upon the Board of Directors or an individual director by law.

4.17 Remuneration. By resolution of the Board of Directors, directors and committee members may be reimbursed for any reasonable expenses incurred for attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors or at any of its committees.

ARTICLE V

Officers of the Corporation

5.1 Designations. The officers of the Corporation shall be a Chair, an Immediate Past Chair, a Vice Chair, a Secretary-Treasurer and such other officers and assistant officers as the Board of Directors may deem necessary. No individual may hold more than one office.

5.2 Election and Term of Office. Each year, the Board of Directors, at its annual meeting, shall elect the officers of the Corporation, each of whom must be a director. Each officer shall hold office until a successor has been elected and qualified, or until such officer's earlier death, resignation or removal.

5.3 Powers and Duties.

5.3.1 The Chair. The Chair, if present, shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors. The Chair shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation and, subject to the direction and control of the Board of Directors, shall have general control and management of the business affairs and policies of the Corporation. The Chair shall act as liaison from and as spokesman for the Board of Directors. The Chair may sign all certificates, contracts and other instruments of the Corporation, which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed, except where the signing or execution: (i) has been expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or these Bylaws to some other officer or agent of the Corporation; or (ii) is required by Law to be otherwise signed or executed. In general, the Chair shall perform all duties incident to the office of Chair and such other duties as the Board of Directors, by resolution, may determine.

5.3.2 Immediate Past Chair. The Immediate Past Chair, in consultation with the current officers, is responsible for providing a sense of continuity to the work of the board. The Immediate Past Chair serves a one-year term and performs such duties as the Board Chair may assign.

5.3.3 The Vice Chair. The Vice Chair of the Corporation shall serve as Chair in the absence or disability of the Chair. When so acting, the Vice Chair shall have all the powers and duties of the Chair, as well as be subject to all the restrictions

imposed upon the Chair. The Vice Chair shall perform such other duties as the Board of Directors, by resolution, may determine.

5.3.4 The Secretary-Treasurer. The Secretary-Treasurer shall: (i) issue notices for all meetings, except for notices for special meetings of the members or directors that are called by the requisite number of members or directors; (ii) keep minutes of all meetings of the members and directors; (iii) have charge of the seal and the Corporation's books; (iv) have the custody of all moneys and securities of the Corporation; (v) deposit such monies in the name of the Corporation in banks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be selected in accordance with these Bylaws; (vi) keep regular books of account; (vii) disburse the funds of the Corporation in payment of the just demands against the Corporation or as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers or receipts for such disbursements; (viii) render to the Board of Directors from time to time as may be required an account of all transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the Corporation; and (ix) make such reports and perform such other duties incident to the office of Secretary-Treasurer or as the Board of Directors, by resolution, may determine.

5.5 Vacancies. The Board of Directors may fill vacancies in any office, regardless of the cause, at any regular or special meeting.

5.6 Resignation. An officer may resign at any time by: (i) delivering written notice to the Chair or Secretary-Treasurer; or (ii) giving oral notice at any meeting of the Board of Directors. This notice shall be effective when delivered or given unless the notice specifies a later effective date. Unless specified in the notice, acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

5.7 Removal. The Board of Directors may remove any officer at any time, with or without cause, by the affirmative vote of a majority of all the directors.

ARTICLE VI

Notices, Demands, Consents and Waiver

6.1 Requirements. Except as may otherwise be required by law, any notice, demand, consent or waiver required to be given by these Bylaws must be in writing and directed to the party at the address shown in the Corporation's current records.

6.2 Method of Delivery. Notices, demands, consents or waivers must be: (i) personally delivered; (ii) sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage and charges prepaid; (iii) sent by express delivery by a national carrier; (iv) transmitted by facsimile equipment; or (v) transmitted electronically when consented to by the recipient in accordance with the provisions of RCW 24.03.009 as now in effect or hereafter amended.

6.3 Effective Delivery. Delivery shall be deemed effective as follows: (i) when received by personal delivery, express delivery by national carrier, or by facsimile equipment; (ii) on the date shown on the return certified or registered mail receipt, if signed by or on behalf of the addressee; or (iii) in accordance with the provisions of RCW 24.03.009 as now in effect or hereafter amended for electronic transmissions.

ARTICLE VII

Contracts, Checks, Deposits and Funds

7.1 Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any officer(s), employee(s) or agent (s) of the Corporation, in addition to the officers so authorized by these Bylaws, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation. This authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

7.2 Loans. Unless authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors, which authority may be general, no loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation and no evidences of indebtedness shall be issued in its name.

7.3 Checks, Drafts, etc. All checks, drafts or orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer(s), employee(s) or agent(s) of the Corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. In the absence of such determination by the Board of Directors, the Chair or the Secretary-Treasurer shall sign these instruments.

7.4 Deposits. All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

7.5 Gifts. The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, grant, bequest or devise for the general purposes or any special purpose of the Corporation.

7.6 Loans to Directors and Officers. The Corporation shall make no loans to any director or officer.

ARTICLE VIII

Books and Records

The Corporation shall keep a copy of the following records at its registered or principal office: (i) the current Articles of Incorporation; (ii) the current Bylaws; (iii) a list of members' names and addresses; (iv) a list of directors' and officers' names and addresses; (v) correct and adequate records of accounts and finances; (vi) minutes of the proceedings of its members, the Board of Directors, and any committees established by the Board of Directors (including all actions taken without a meeting); and (vii) such other records that may be necessary or advisable.

ARTICLE IX

Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be from January 1 to December 31, or such other fiscal years as the Board of Directors, by resolution, may determine.

ARTICLE X

Liability and Indemnification

10.1 Liability. A director, officer, or committee member of the Corporation shall not be personally liable to the Corporation for monetary damages for conduct as a director, officer or member except for: (i) acts or omissions that involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law by that director; or (ii) any transaction from which the director personally receives a benefit in money, property or service to which the person or member is not legally entitled.

10.1.1 If the Washington Nonprofit Corporation Act is amended to authorize corporate action further eliminating or limiting the personal liability of directors and/or officers, then the liability of a director or officer of the Corporation shall be eliminated or limited to the fullest extent permitted by the Washington Nonprofit Corporation Act, as so amended.

10.1.2 Any repeal or modification of this Article by the members of the Corporation shall not adversely affect any right or protection of a director or officer existing at the time of such repeal or modification.

10.2 Indemnification. The Corporation shall indemnify its members, directors, officers, committee members, employees, and agents against all liability, damage, and expenses arising from or in connection with service for, employment by, or other affiliation with the Corporation or other firms or entities to the maximum extent and under all circumstances permitted by law. However, no indemnification shall be provided under this provision to any such person or member if: (i) the Corporation is prohibited by the nonexclusive provisions of the Washington Nonprofit Corporation Act or other applicable law as then in effect from paying such indemnification; or (ii) in the opinion of counsel, payment of such indemnification would subject the Corporation to imposition of excise taxes under

the Internal Revenue Code or cause the Corporation to lose its exempt status from federal income taxation.

ARTICLE XI

Copies of Resolutions

Any person dealing with the Corporation may rely upon a copy of any of the records of the proceedings, resolutions or votes of the Board of Directors when the Chair or Secretary-Treasurer certifies these records.

ARTICLE XII

Amendments

The members, by a majority vote at any regular or special meeting, shall have the power to amend or repeal these Bylaws or to adopt new Bylaws.

The undersigned, being the Chair of the Corporation, hereby certifies that these Bylaws are the Bylaws of the Washington Rural Health Collaborative, approved by resolution of the Board of Directors as of July 25, 2014

DATED this 29 day of July, 2014.


Chair

ATTACHMENT A

MEMBERS

Clallam County Public Hospital District No. 1
dba Forks Community Hospital
530 Bogachiel Way
Forks, Washington 98331-9120

Grays Harbor County Public Hospital District No. 1
dba Summit Pacific Medical Center
600 East Main Street
Elma, Washington 98541

Jefferson County Public Hospital District No. 2
dba Jefferson Healthcare
834 Sheridan Avenue
Port Townsend, Washington 98368-2443

King County Public Hospital District No. 4
dba Snoqualmie Valley Hospital and Clinics
9575 Ethan Wade Way SE
Snoqualmie WA 98065-9577

Klickitat County Public Hospital District No. 1
dba Klickitat Valley Health
310 S. Roosevelt
Goldendale, WA 98620

Klickitat County Public Hospital District No. 2
dba Skyline Hospital
211 Skyline Drive
White Salmon, WA 98672

Lewis County Public Hospital District No. 1
dba Morton General Hospital
521 Adams Street
Morton, Washington 98356

Mason County Public Hospital District No. 1
dba Mason General Hospital
901 Mt. View Drive
Shelton, Washington 98584-1668

Pacific County Public Hospital District No. 2
dba Willapa Harbor Hospital
800 Alder Street
South Bend, Washington 98586

Pacific County Public Healthcare Services District No. 3
dba Ocean Beach Hospital
174 First Avenue North, Box H
Ilwaco, Washington 98624-0258

Prosser Public Hospital District, Benton County
dba PMH Medical Center
723 Memorial Street
Prosser, WA 99350-1524

Skagit County Public Hospital District No. 304
dba PeaceHealth United General Medical Center
2000 Hospital Drive
Sedro Woolley, Washington 98284-4327

Whidbey Island Public Hospital District
dba Whidbey General Hospital
101 N. Main Street
Coupeville, Washington 98239-3413